
 

 
 

  

 

Rittman City Council Met in 

A REGULAR MEETING 

on Monday, April 23, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Members Present:  Glen Russell, Darrell Carey, Rick Hanlon, Richard Lapehn  

        and Steve Johnson 

Members Absent:   Lynn Beaumont 

Presiding:         Mayor William Robertson 

 

Invocation was given by Barbara Brooks, clerk followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Approval of Minutes – April 9, 2012 

Hanlon so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 
Workshop 

  a. Discussion of the Phase II Sidewalk Improvement Program 
 City Manager Boggs advised since the last meeting he and the Service Supervisor looked at 

the existing sidewalk sections in phase II that need replaced and the cost would be approximately 

$13,500. He advised when they tallied up the areas where sidewalks don’t exist in this phase it came 

to approximately $184,000. Boggs advised the city does not have that much in the budget for this 

project ($50,000 budgeted for each year) as they have to front the money. He advised there was no 

way to do Phase II as a whole and it was going to have to be divided it up. Boggs advised there were 

some areas where it would be extremely difficult to install sidewalks as some of these properties have 

large embankments and issues like we discussed at Grandview Park. He advised he was looking for 

direction from Council as to how they wanted him to proceed. Boggs advised his recommendation 

was to fix the broken sections of sidewalk and there were some areas that were extremely bad with 

large trees that have uprooted the sidewalks and are very much a (hazard) for people walking. He 

indicated he would recommend continuing with the phases out from the area of the schools replacing 

the existing broken sections and install as much of the non-existing sidewalk areas until they reach 

the budgeted amount each year. Boggs advised the Mayor suggested to him that possibly Council 

may want to go early for their next meeting to this area and look at the properties along with the 

property owners to see how to address these issues and get direct input from the property owners. 

 Hanlon inquired if the south end of Metzger was included in phase II. 

 Boggs advised yes. 

 Hanlon advised he agreed with repairing the existing sidewalks and then as originally planned 

work outward from the schools. He advised he felt they needed to look at certain areas such as 

Grandview Park that may need to include the cost of retaining walls.  

 Lapehn inquired as to the cost estimate just to repair the existing sidewalks that needed to be 

replaced. 

 Boggs advised $13,500. 

 Lapehn advised so we would be at $36,500 for this year’s expenditure. 

 Boggs advised roughly. 

 Lapehn inquired if they would even reach the area on Grandview and Hawthorne this year. 

 Boggs advised he doubted it. He advised he felt there was enough to do with Hillcrest, 

Crismore and a section on Rittman Rd. and one on Pinewood or Greenwood. Boggs advised most of 

both sides of Hillcrest don’t have sidewalks. He advised they might be able to get down part of 

Grandview with this year’s budget, but it would be close.  

 Lapehn advised he would be surprised if they could make it that far this year and he felt it 

wasn’t a bad idea to meet out there prior to the next meeting or the meeting after that for the 2013 

(sidewalk budget) as he believed there was more than enough concrete to repair and pour without 

getting to the park area and those surrounding properties.  

 Boggs advised he could give a better idea at the next meeting and provide a measurement of 

those sections and see how far they could go. 

 Johnson advised he liked the idea of meeting out there possibly at 6:00 pm and let the 

homeowners know to meet us and look at the situations. He advised the section on Grandview he 

looked at over the weekend and he felt it (installing sidewalk on the park property) would be 

relatively inexpensive where it was graded for the sidewalk previously. Johnson advised the other 

spot they were going to have to take out a row of trees. He advised we (city) got hollered at once 

before for taking trees down and he didn’t believe they wanted to be taking 100 year old trees down. 

Johnson advised they would be improving it and getting the kids off the street and the fact that it 

wouldn’t be 3’ off the curb doesn’t bother him. He advised he felt they would be making it better than 



it was and doing it that way would save a lot of expense. Johnson advised some areas have utility 

poles in the middle of the right of way and that was not going to be inexpensive and it seemed to him 

they would get a lot more bang for their buck if they move the sidewalk a couple of feet versus 

moving utilities and cutting down trees. He advised they would still need retaining walls in some 

areas, but they could save money on those too because the farther you go into the hill the higher the 

wall becomes and there was expense to maintain those retaining walls as they tend to get shoved 

around in the frost. Johnson advised after 8-10 years a retaining wall can be pretty beat up. 

 Russell advised he really didn’t need to go down and look at the property as he has already 

reviewed the property on Grandview and he still feels they should stay with the phase II as originally 

started and go as far as they could with the money (allotted). He advised last year they told 60 + 

people this was where they were going to start and we (city) weren’t going to back down and he feels 

they should stay with the existing sidewalks and go as far as we could go. Russell advised as he 

reported at the last meeting he noticed in Akron both sides of the street have sidewalks next to the 

curb. He advised there was talk about the snowplows shoveling the snow onto the sidewalks, but he 

wasn’t complaining he was glad the street was clean. Russell advised that was one of those things we 

would have to discuss when that happens. He advised they weren’t going to be able to keep the guys 

shoveling the snow from putting snow on the sidewalk as that was impossible.  

 Boggs advised he would contact the property owners and he inquired if 6:00 p.m. was when 

they wanted to meet. 

 Hanlon advised he wasn’t opposed to a meeting there, but he felt they should meet with the 

people in the areas that can be accomplished this year. He advised he didn’t see the need to talk to 

people that were not going to (have their sidewalk area improved) this year. Hanlon advised he was 

familiar with all the areas around Hawthorne and Grandview. 

 Robertson inquired if they (Council) wanted to see how far the money would go first and then 

determine if they need to meet with the residents. He advised it could be put off for another meeting 

and inquired if that made sense. Robertson inquired of Boggs if he would then be bringing back a 

map area indicating the areas to be repaired. 

 Boggs advised he would bring a list of streets indicating how far he believed they could go 

(with the funds available this year for sidewalk install/repairs). 

 Robertson received no opposition to the question if that was okay with Council. He advised 

they (Council) could decide at a later date if they needed to meet. 

 

Citizens Forum 

 Dave Tabaka of Pleasantiview Dr. advised at the last Council meeting when it was discussed 

about the income tax reduction of the reciprocity policy and there seemed to be a little uncertainty 

regarding the matter of how the voters had voted on it when this was passed. He advised they were 

going to look into that (issue) and he took the liberty of looking into it and copied all of Council on 

what he found out. Tabaka advised for those who weren’t here (at the last meeting) he would like to 

recap. He advised in 1988 there was an initiative petition to put on the ballot the reciprocity policy 

and let voters decide if we should have it or not. Tabaka advised that passed and went into the city 

charter and it has been there ever since, the full 1.5% reciprocity. He advised again in 2005 he wasn’t 

sure if it was the reciprocity voted on or if it was a new tax, maybe someone remembers. Tabaka 

advised they did vote again on whether or not to raise taxes to fund the rec center and he believed it 

was the same principle that they wanted to have a 1.5% reduction in reciprocity. He inquired if that 

was correct if that was what was voted on in 2005. 

 Hanlon advised not that he recalls.  

 Tabaka advised there was a vote in 2005 and it was defeated by the voters.  

 Hanlon advised there were several tax issues for the operation and maintenance of the rec 

center and he felt those three tax issues failed, but he didn’t believe those were voted on in 2005. 

 Tabaka agreed and advised he believed they were all defeated. 

 Stefanko advised he believed the vote in 2005 was not to fund the rec center, but to decrease 

the (credit given) from 1.5% to 1%. He advised the one to fund the rec center was actually a 

(proposed) tax increase from 1.5% to 2%. 

 Tabaka advised because 1.5% was our cap and they were asking the voters to go over that. 

 Robertson clarified that 1.5% was our tax (rate) and the credit (given for taxes paid other 

municipalities) is stated, as he understands it, as being 100% of the tax. He advised if the tax was 

increased to 2% then those working out of town would get a full credit on that as well.  

 Tabaka clarified the reciprocity would move with the tax. 

 Robertson advised that was the way he understands it. 

 Tabaka advised the way he read it, it didn’t specifically say. He advised it just says equal to 

the full Rittman tax. Tabaka advised the bottom line or the point he was trying to get to was they had 

a vote of the people once or twice before to reduce reciprocity to 1% and both times it was defeated 

by the voters. He advised the reason he was here and the reason he was bringing it up was to solely 

put this into perspective before Council votes that the people have spoken and it was defeated by the 

people who got reciprocity in the first place. Tabaka advised he was asking this Council to think hard 

about that because they were either going to override the will of the people in this town or they were 



going to honor their will. He advised if we need to at least consider this then they should put it before 

the voters.  

 Tim Stefanko of Salt Court advised he remembers the 2005 vote to reduce the reciprocity 

from 1.5% to 1% because Mr. Lapehn at that time opposed the measure and when he (Stefanko) 

reported on it he (Lapehn) came and corrected him (Stefanko) later so, he remembers it quite well and 

it was shot down overwhelmingly. He advised personally he believes most of the members on 

Council know “doggone well” that the people have shot this down repeatedly, which is why they 

were so adamant about doing it without allowing the people to vote on it. Stefanko advised he 

couldn’t think of any other reason and if someone could give him a good reason why a 4 person 

majority should decide something the people have decided against, he would certainly like to hear it. 

He inquired if anyone had a good reason why the people shouldn’t be allowed to vote on it or was it 

simply because they don’t like what they think the outcome was going to be. 

 Hanlon advised he felt it was a good idea to protect what we have as he stated in the minutes 

of the last meeting during his Council Remarks. He advised he never thought he would ever vote for a 

tax increase and he will probably never vote for a tax increase and a credit reduction is the same 

thing. Hanlon advised what has not been reported, to his knowledge, in the paper was that they spent 

the last six months trying to figure out a way for this government to function with a $300,000 deficit. 

He advised they didn’t just arbitrarily say, “Hey, let’s lower the credit!”. Hanlon advised Larry and 

our Finance Director, Barb brought a lot of issues to the table for us to discuss because we are going 

to be in the hole $300,000. He advised if we lower the tax credit to 1% it still was not going to make 

up the $300,000 (shortfall) and there were still other things they have to put into place. Hanlon 

advised he agreed the voters should have a right to vote on it and they (city) have a budget they have 

to turn in to Wayne County in July and the (election is not) until November. He advised unfortunately 

the reporters haven’t been reporting on what they (Council) have gone through to get to this point. 

Hanlon advised they have looked at a lot of things and there have been a lot of objections to lowering 

the credit. He advised tonight he was going to make a motion to table the adoption of this (legislation) 

to give Mr. Beaumont a chance to be here and vote. Hanlon advised he doesn’t know if he has 

answered his (Stefanko) question, but they (Council/City) can’t budget on the “what if”. He advised 

they can’t wait until November to put it through to the voters and say, “Okay, if it’s approved in 

November” because that doesn’t help our budget that is due in July to the county. Hanlon advised if 

the voters vote to overrule what we do here, if this passes, then we still have to come up with a budget 

and he didn’t know how they were going to do that. He advised we were going to have to rely on our 

City Manager and our Finance Director to find out what cuts had to be made. Hanlon advised there 

were still issues he has and he would like to look at the 25% of the income tax (collections) that goes 

into the Water Fund instead go to the General Fund, although he didn’t know if that was consistent 

with other areas (municipalities). He advised he wasn’t opposed to 25% of the income tax going to 

Capital (Improvement Fund) (as it currently does) and he recently heard on the radio that Orrville 

increased theirs from 20% to 25%. Hanlon advised he believed it was good business to set money 

aside for capital projects such as infrastructure improvements. He advised he would also like to look 

at changing income tax in the way it was being reported. Hanlon advised he files income taxes in a lot 

of different (cities) and looking at multiple surrounding income tax forms and then he looks at 

Rittman’s. He advised if he worked out of town and Rittman sent him this form “I would throw it in 

the trash”. Hanlon advised he thinks there is a lot of income tax we’re losing from out of town 

businesses because they can’t properly report it on our form. He advised but he didn’t believe that 

was going to amount to $300,000. 

 Russell advised he doesn’t have a problem with letting the voters decide on whether we were 

going to reduce the credit. 

 Stefanko advised he knew the answer would be that they have to have their budgeting and 

don’t have time to get this in front of the voters. He advised the fact of the matter was that when they 

walked in here in January they knew the city was broke and if they didn’t they had no business being 

up there. 

James Johnson of S. First St. advised this whole tax thing has him kind of concerned too. He 

advised three of you sitting up there knew 10 years ago when Bob Kellogg told you this was going to 

happen that it was going to happen. Johnson advised and yet the city, him included, was guilty of 

spending uncontrollably and he was a part of that for four years. He advised they knew 10 years ago 

when Bob Kellogg and Jim Bell, who was the finance director at the time, warned City Council that 

this day was coming. Johnson advised three of you up there knew this was happening so they really 

shouldn’t be surprised at a $300,000 deficit. He advised he was kind of discouraged by the fact that 

they have said they have done all they can to cut because he doesn’t think they have. Johnson advised 

he has some questions and he hopes someone “up there” can give him some answers. He inquired 

from the beginning of the year until the current day how many police officers have been hired. 

Johnson advised he knows there have been a few. He advised not to say he knows the situations, but 

for every firefighter that does not have the appropriate training it cost the city $700 per person and 

they just put 3 on (the fire dept.) at the last meeting. Johnson advised he commends Mr. Hanlon for 

standing up against justifying the (purchase of the) new police cruiser at $29,000. He advised he read 

an article in the paper about the new police cruiser and the math wasn’t adding up. Johnson advised it 



(police cruiser) was coming in at $29,000 and he inquired if that included the cost of all the new 

equipment.  

He was advised that amount included those costs. 

J. Johnson advised according to the report in the newspaper $25,000 in capital (funds) would 

be used for the purchase and the (city) was also looking at using funds out of the DUI (fines) paid by 

those who choose to drink and drive, but that still leaves $1500 unaccounted for and he inquired if 

that was going to have to come out of the General Fund. He advised if so, that was money they could 

be (saving) that they chose not to (save). Johnson advised also, it may not be that much money, but 

here in the past 4 weeks 4 new signs have “went up” regulating where people can park in the City of 

Rittman. He advised all 4 center around the police station. Johnson advised he understood the reason 

for those (signs) and he does not know the cost of a sign, but 4 brand new signs have “went up”. He 

advised two of the signs were restricting people to park near a handicapped accessible ramp that were 

right in front of the doors of the police station. Johnson advised people can’t park between these signs 

restricting access to the handicap accessible ramp, although there is no handicapped parking spot 

(located) there so, someone in a wheelchair would either have to take their chances or go down Ohio 

Ave to Medina St. or have someone wheel them out onto traffic on Ohio Ave. He advised there was a 

huge money pit that sits “on top of the hill” called the rec center. Johnson advised a huge money pit 

that this city chooses to take 25% of taxes to pay for and yet it still loses money. He advised maybe 

we should look at the possibility that has come up several times on past Councils, before and during 

his time, of getting rid of it (rec ctr) because it was costing the city too much money. Johnson advised 

we are constantly every year losing money with the rec center. He advised also we are “dumping” 

money into the Wayne County Economic Development Council and he has yet to see any proven 

results. Johnson advised the city has also paid money to support the Chamber, which the only thing 

he has ever “seen” come out of the Chamber since he has known of its existence, which he has lived 

here his whole life, is in fact the Sleepwalker Festival. He inquired as to why they (city) continue to 

give money to that (chamber) when it really wasn’t doing any good or bringing in business that he 

could see. Johnson advised the only other positive, if you want to call it positive, was that it seemed 

that the annual meeting was held at liquor establishments so that the city has got its hand in that. He 

advised regarding the golf cart resolution in front of (council) tonight, he knows it was mentioned at 

the last meeting and turned down regarding allowing ATV’s on the street because they exceed the 

speed limit of 20 mph. Johnson inquired as to who/what law governs that. 

Chris Schmeltzer of Overlook Dr. advised there is a slow moving vehicle law for the State of 

Ohio for a minimum of 20 mph and a maximum of 35 mph and then there was criteria that had to be 

met as far as equipment and such.  

J. Johnson advised if they tell a citizen of the City of Rittman, “no” to using an ATV on the 

street then he inquired why were the city employees allowed to drive a Gator at 35 plus mph on 

College St to the ball fields every other day to get the fields ready. He advised if he as a citizen 

cannot have an ATV (on the streets) then the city should keep theirs at the ball fields and he felt that 

was only fair to the citizens. Johnson advised “you can’t tell me to do something if you can do it 

yourself. It’s not right”. He advised a police officer is not allowed to run a red light just for the sake 

of running a red light. Johnson advised there was no reason for an ATV (in the garage) at City Hall 

since there was a garage down there (ball fields).  

      

Old Business 

 

a. Ord. No. 7702 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Amending Section 191.07 (a) City Resident Subject to 

Income Tax in Other Municipality of the Codified Ordinances. Third Reading. Ord. No. 7702 

was read on third reading. Hanlon moved to Table, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 b. Ord. No. 7703 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Ohio, 

Authorizing the Municipal Manger to Accept the Best Rates for Errors and Omissions 

Coverage, for All Members of the Fire Department, Property and Casualty, Auto, General 

Liability, Ambulance Malpractice Insurance, Law Enforcement Liability and Public Officials 

Insurance for a Period of One (1) Year Commencing June 1, 2012, and Declaring an 

Emergency. Third Reading. Ord. No. 7703 was read on third reading. Carey moved to adopt, all 

Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 c. Res. No. 7705 A Resolution of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Authorizing the Finance Director to Create a Solid Waste 

Management Fund. Second Reading. Res. No. 7705 was read on second reading. Hanlon moved to 

place on third, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 d. Ord. No. 7706 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Creating Chapter 333.11, Golf Carts, of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Rittman and Declaring an Emergency. Second Reading. Ord. No. 7706 



was read on second reading. Lapehn moved to place, upon roll call; Lapehn-Yes, Johnson-Yes, 

Hanlon-Yes, Russell-No, Carey-Yes and motion carried. 

 

New Business 

 a. Arbor Day Proclamation  
 Mayor Robertson proclaimed Friday, April 27, 2012 as Arbor Day in the City of Rittman 

and urged all citizens to support efforts to protect trees and woodlands and to support our City’s urban 

forestry program. 

 

 b.  Res. No. 7707 A Resolution of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Declaring it Necessary to Improve Strawberry Hill, Cutters 

Landing, Windswept, Pebble Cove, Driftwood, Jasmin, Hawk Ridge, Windsor Mews and 

Wilers Grove by Planing and Milling the Existing Surface and Installing a New Asphalt 

Surface, All Together with the Necessary Appurtenances Thereto and Declaring an Emergency. 

First Reading. Res. No. 7707 was read on first reading. Boggs indicated this legislation was in 

anticipation of Issue 2 Funding. Boggs advised hopefully we’ll know before the third reading 

(whether this project has been awarded). S. Johnson clarified there would be no General Fund monies 

used for this project. Boggs confirmed such. Rissland agreed and advised it would come out of the 

Capital Improvement Fund. Hanlon moved to place on second, upon roll call; Johnson-Yes, Hanlon-

Yes, Carey-Yes, Russell-No, Lapehn-Yes and motion carried. 

 

 c. Ord. No. 7708 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Amending the Annual Appropriation Ordinance No. 7678, 

As Amended, According to the Attached Sheet(s) and Declaring an Emergency. Three 

Readings. Ord. No. 7708 was read on first reading. Lapehn moved to suspend the rules and have 

second and third reading, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. Ord. No. 7708 was read on second 

and third reading. Lapehn moved to adopt, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried.  

 

 d. Ord. No. 7709 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties, Ohio, Authorizing the Municipal Manager to Obtain the Release of 

Permissive Tax Funds from the Wayne County Engineer for the Replacement of the East 

Sunset Drive Bridge at Landis Ditch and Declaring an Emergency. Three Readings. Ord. No. 

7709 was read on first reading. Boggs advised he wanted to clarify that the Wayne County Engineers 

were doing the bridge repair and the City of Rittman is doing the approaches on either side for 

smooth travel across the bridge and this ordinance covers the city’s share of the cost. Carey moved to 

suspend the rules and have second and third reading, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. Ord. 

No. 7709 was read on second and third reading. Hanlon moved to adopt, all Yeas on roll call and 

motion carried. 

 

 e. Motion to Go Into Executive Session for the Purpose of Considering the 

Purchase of Property for Public Purposes and Invite the City Manager, the Law Director, the 

Mayor and the Finance Director - 7:46 p.m. Carey so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion 

carried. 

 

Council Member Rick Hanlon left the meeting at 7:48 p.m.  

 

 f. Motion to Come Out of Executive Session – 8:03 p.m. 

  Russell so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

City Manager’s Remarks 
 City Manager Larry Boggs had no remarks.  

  

Finance Director’s Remarks 
 Finance Director Barbara Rissland advised a lot of the reason we (city) are looking at 

enhancing our revenues right now was not as much a function of the expenditures, but due to a loss of 

$300,000 because of state cuts. She advised this was something Council was not aware of 2 years ago 

when this budget came in and she would be surprised if they don’t see more cuts in the future. 

Rissland advised that is $300,000 over the course of 2 years that is just gone from the budget. She 

advised across the state a lot of political subdivisions are facing the same dilemma’s they are right 

now.  

 Mayor Robertson advised and it was the Local government Fund (LGF) that was cut by the 

state. 

 Rissland advised Local Government Fund, Tangible Personal Property Tax Reimbursement, 

Estate Tax and combine that with the economy and property values being down so, they are also 

facing a reduction in property taxes. She advised those things combined create the perfect storm. 

Rissland advised the Local Government Fund was cut 50% and they would know by next budget if 

they were going to cut it even further. 



 Robertson advised at a Mayor’s and City Manager’s meeting it was presented to the 

Governor if there are excess state funds that the LGF be restored or a portion of it restored and the 

Governor has refused to do so, but instead was proposing a state income tax reduction across the 

board. 

 Russell advised he saw something in the paper with Congressman Renacci and others asking 

Governor Kasich why he was doing what he is doing on the backs of the cities, but he (Russell) didn’t 

know where they (stood with that issue). 

 Robertson advised there were various organizations that were asking and it was a trickle 

down tax increase because the state was saying they weren’t going to raise taxes, but it knocks a 

quarter million out of our budget. He agreed they were putting it on our backs and advised we 

(become) the bad guys. 

 

Council Remarks  

 Council Member Glen Russell advised he would like to thank everyone for being here and for 

the input that was put out at the meeting tonight and he invited them to come back. 

 Council Member Steve Johnson had no remarks.  

 Council Member Darrell Carey thanked everyone for coming and he hoped they would be 

able to come back. 

 Council Member Richard Lapehn advised he heard on the radio that the state has a $250 

million dollar rainy day fund that was fully funded. He advised the state has $265 million in surplus 

right now at the state level. Lapehn advised and they were looking at the possibility of them reducing, 

and he didn’t know the percentages, but his state income taxes have gone down by 30-40% in the last 

five years. 

 Rissland advised there has been a progressive reduction.  

 Lapehn agreed and advised that was less money going to Columbus and less money in return 

going to the cities and he has a little more money in his pocket because of the state, but that doesn’t 

help the city at all. He advised he would like to thank James (Johnson) for his very thoughtful 

suggestions and reminders of possible areas of inquiry for us (Council) to (consider) because nickels 

and dimes and hundreds here and there really do add up and he was exactly right about that. Lapehn 

advised he doesn’t know exactly when we (city) had 11 officers, but we did have 11 full-time officers 

at one time.  

 Police Chief Burg advised in the 1980’s. 

 Lapehn inquired as to when we (city) had 10 full-time officers. He advised he didn’t believe 

it was too long ago. 

 Burg advised we have 8 (full-time) now.  

 Lapehn advised he believed it wasn’t that long ago that we had 10 and we are now down 25% 

from what he remembers in the number of full-time officers. He advised and we use the part-time 

officers to fill the shifts. Lapehn advised he believed at one time they had 2 officers on every shift. 

 Burg advised they still try to (have 2 per shift), but he was just talking with Larry (City 

Manager) today that when vacations come up this summer it was looking like they may have to go to 

some one man shifts.  

 Lapehn advised so the goal was 2, but there was no way to do that with the number of part-

timers and the number of vacations, etc. He advised the experience of the 8 full-time officers as they 

go up the scale and vacations along with the things that were all union negotiated contracts were all 

things the city couldn’t change as they get a more veteran-ed staff. Lapehn advised feels the part-time 

officers do a wonderful job and they certainly need part-time officers to cover the shifts where we 

have no full-time officers to cover. He advised but he does like the comment (from James Johnson) 

about the Wayne Economic Development Council and the Rittman Chamber as those were expenses 

they need to check and see what the return rate is on those. Lapehn advised there was some good 

news this year as there was a new business that would be opening up probably June or July with eight 

employees in town. He advised that was very good news and Larry (Boggs) has worked very hard 

with them and he imagined the Chamber has worked with them to help make things smooth for the 

transition. Lapehn advised there was a golf store on (N. Main St.) was also another positive they 

could point to and say those jobs weren’t here just a couple of years ago. He advised he knows Larry 

(Boggs) and Bill (Robertson) have been involved as well as the Chamber and Wayne Economic 

working with the EPA on the old PCA building. Lapehn advised if we can’t do something with it then 

maybe get some super fund money and that was a continuing battle and Larry never lets down the 

fight and Bill has been there right by his side the whole time working, working, working with our 

politicians and the people who make those dollars flow to see if they can get that site cleaned up and 

made available for good small jobs and small businesses to come into town. He advised he wanted to 

thank James for his thoughtful consideration and pointing out specific areas we can look at and 

continue to work on. 

 Mayor William Robertson advised to reinforce what was said about the hardware store that 

would be opening on S. Main St. where the Premier Pontiac used to be located and prior to that it was 

the Sohio Station. He advised he (Manager, Ron Woodward) was sort of open now doing some 

sharpening and he would provide a lot of service (needs) for people. Robertson advised there would 

be a ribbon cutting and he was getting stocked ready to go. He advised there have been a lot of people 



hoping for a hardware store in Rittman and he hoped the people would support it. Robertson advised 

it was good news and he asked people to stop by and give Ron (Woodward) some encouragement as 

he was working most days trying to get things ready and it was going to be a nice business location. 

He advised he agreed the Caraustar property holds a lot of potential for our future and it was 300 

acres of a Brownfield and an area Wayne Economic Development Council has helped with their 

expertise and connections beyond things he and Larry could accomplish. Robertson advised it was 

hard to put a price tag on it and at some point they may have to look at that and see if it’s worth the 

investment we’re making. He advised it was kind of a background thing that goes on and was pretty 

hard to quantify. 

  

a. Approval of Vouchers 56893 thru 57002 w/Then and Now Certificates  

Lapehn moved to approve, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

Adjourn: 8:12 p.m. 

Carey moved to adjourn, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

___________________________  

Clerk of Council 
 

   

 


